Minutes of the meeting of Adults Select Committee held at County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA on Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

PRESENT: County Councillor P. Farley (Chairman)

County Councillor R. Harris (Vice Chairman)

County Councillors: R. Chapman, R. Edwards, P. Jones, P. Jordan

and Coop-tee Member D Hudson

Also in attendance County Councillor(s): V. Smith

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Annette Evans Customer Relations Manager
Matthew Gatehouse Policy and Performance Manager
Shelley Welton Lead Commissioner Transformation

Paula Harris Democratic Services Officer

Hazel llett Scrutiny Manager
Janet Cox My Day Support Worker
Sarah Seabourne My Day My Life Broker

Kemmine Compere ASD Community Support Worker

Also in attendance:

Sean Galatley My Mate Member Sara North My Mate Member

1. Apologies for absence

County Councillor M. Hickman and Mr David Hill.

2. Declarations of interest

Item 6

County Councillor P. Farley declared a non-prejudicial interest as a trustee of Chepstow Senior Citizens Welfare Trust

3. Public Open Forum

There were no members of the public present.

4. To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the Committee meeting dated 20th September 2016 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

Minutes of the meeting of Adults Select Committee held at County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA on Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

In relation to item 8, as per the Chair's summary, a number of recommendations were made to Cabinet. The Chair wrote a letter to the Cabinet member on these terms, no date no formal response has been received.

In view of this, despite the January meeting agenda being solely dedicated to scrutiny of the budget proposals, the Cabinet member will be invited to address the issues and concerns previously raised.

5. Annual Complaints Report

Context:

To provide Adult Select committee with information on the number and types of complaints, comments and compliments received and dealt with from 1April 2015 until 31 March 2016.

Key Issues:

All Local Authority Social Services are required to follow the new Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and The Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014.

Guidance is also issued under Section 7 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970. This means that local authorities must comply with it.

Member Scrutiny:

It was asked if the council had serial complainers who raise issues on a regular basis and we were told that yes, there were regular complainers but there were not such persistent complainers in adult services.

It was asked in what format information on raising a complaint was available and where this information could be found. The officer advised that the information was available via the website and leaflets left at various places around the county (hospitals, libraries, etc.) and once people contacted customer services they were advised of the complaint process.

It was asked by a member if the public's expectations were unrealistic and times and we were told that this could be the case at times, with resources stretched currently it often left members of the public unhappy with service timescales which led to complaints.

Committee's Conclusion:

The Committee thanked the officer and her team for the continual hard work undertaken and look forward to the next update.

Minutes of the meeting of Adults Select Committee held at County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA on Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

6. <u>Improvement Objectives, Performance and Risk Assessment</u>

Context:

To present quarter 2 performance data for the Improvement Objectives which are under the remit of Adults Select Committee. This is:

• Improvement Objective 2 - We will safeguard people, whether young or old, while reducing people's dependence on social care.

Supplementary to this paper a separate report on adult social services performance at quarter 2 is on the agenda. This presents data from the new measurement framework introduced as part of the Social Services and Well-being Act.

Key Issues:

Improvement Objectives are set annually by the Council to deliver on priorities, these are set in the Improvement Plan 2016/17. While objectives being focussed on the long term they are supplemented by annual actions and milestones that mark the progress towards their delivery.

Activity that contributes to the delivery of some objectives cross cuts select committee remits and these will also be reported to the other relevant committee(s). Therefore it is suggested members focus their scrutiny on the activity relevant to the committee with consideration of its contribution to the objective as a whole.

The Improvement Objectives will be evaluated at the end of the year (2016/17) based on the council's self-evaluation framework, as set in the Improvement Plan 2016-17. Performance against them will be reported to committees and in the Stage 2 Improvement Plan published in October each year.

This is likely to be the final annual cycle of Improvement Planning in this format. The council is currently undertaking two substantial assessments of need and wellbeing within the county as a consequence of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and the Social Services and Wellbeing Act. This information will provide a much deeper evidence base of well-being in the County and will be used to review the council's current improvement objectives in preparation for the publication of the council's wellbeing objectives by 31st March 2017.

Member Scrutiny:

A member of the committee who volunteers at the Raglan project commented on the vast improvements in outcomes recently and emphasized how forward thinking Monmouthshire was to go ahead with this project.

Minutes of the meeting of Adults Select Committee held at County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA on Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

The asked the Officer if he had a feel for how evenly spread place based working was becoming across the county and was it stronger in some places than others. In response we were told that there has been very different results across different communities and going forward community mapping will help us understand the particular needs of each area.

A Member asked how many residents needed local authority funded care as this wasn't made clear by percentages. We were answered that it was approx. 230 older people and smaller number in the under 65 age group. The Member asked if that going forward would there be figures available to compare our authority against other authorities, the officer confirmed that he had this information and would distribute this after the meeting. (ACTION M.G.)

A Member of the Committee commented that recent reports had expressed the importance of early intervention and perhaps by the time people get to 18-24 it may be too late to help and money may be better spent on people in their early years.

It was asked in respect of recent safeguarding issues in the news regarding coaching sports what the procedure would be if there was an incident. We were told that there is a whole authority safeguarding group who oversee operations and would investigate any issue in a timely manner.

Committee's Conclusion:

The Chair thanked the Officer for presenting the reports and spoke of how as a Council we receive the reports in terms of addressing recommendations.

Currently the report process we have puts the collating officer in an unfair position as they are not in a position to answer questions on the service side.

The Chair also looked forward to receiving supplementary information requested after the meeting.

7. 'My Mates' Initiative

Context:

The Committee received a presentation on a new initiative 'My Mates'. The scheme has been set up to encourage people with a learning disability make friends and close personal relationships and is based at the Hub in Abergavenny.

The group run a number of social events and activities throughout the year based on suggestions made by members of the group. They provide advice and support to people looking to meet new people.

Minutes of the meeting of Adults Select Committee held at County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA on Tuesday, 13th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

Membership is free, however members need to pay for meals, transport and entrance fees when at a social event.

Member Scrutiny:

Members were unanimous in their support of this initiative and were keen that it was suitably publicised.

A Member commented on the isolation felt by children with learning disabilities when they grow up and lose their parents, who are often their care givers and applauded the initiative for helping people socialise.

Committee's Conclusion:

The Committee fully supported the My Mates scheme and look forward hearing the project develop.

The Committee thanked the service users who came to committee to speak to members and commented on the enthusiasm shown.

8. Adult Select Committee Forward Work Programme

Members discussed the Work Programme for the Adults Select Committee. In doing so noted the frailty item for future review.

9. Cabinet and Council Work Planner

Members considered the Cabinet Forward Work Planner – no issues were identified as requiring pre-decision scrutiny.

10. <u>To confirm the date and time of the next meeting as Tuesday 24th January</u> 2017 at 10.00am

The meeting ended at 12.14 pm